RFI # 1107 CCAP Information Management System

Questions
1 Has funding been reserved or a budget been allocated for this
project as of yet?

Answers
OCFS has funds available for potential procurement or development of information
systems in keeping with the content of this RFI. This RFI does not constitute a
Request for Proposal (RFP) or an Invitation for Bid (IFB) or a promise to issue an
RFP or an IFB. Not responding to this RFI does not preclude participation in any
future RFP or IFB, if any are issued.
2 If the RFI does proceed to an RFP is there a timeline that the
Based on the results of this information-finding project, Department priorities, and
department is hoping to follow in regard to an RFP release?
funding, potential RFP or RFPs may be issued, however a timeline has not been
established. Should OCFS decide to issue an RFP, it will be posted on the NYS
Contract Reporter https://nyscr.ny.gov/ and the OCFS website:
https://www.ocfs.ny.gov/main/contracts/funding/
3 Is there currently an incumbent contract fulfilling this
Incumbent contracts exist for some, but not all, of the functional areas described in
requirement?
this RFI.
4 It is noted that any content that is proprietary and/or
A redacted copy may be submitted provided that such redaction in strictly limited
confidential must be clearly marked as such in the response. Is it to proprietary and/or confidential information. Final determination on what to
possible for us to also submit a redacted public copy of our
release under applicable FOIL laws would be determined by the OCFS Records
response that could be provided in response to any potential
Access Officer.
FOIA requests?

a.From RFI P6, Guidance to Respondents: Any content that is
proprietary and/or confidential must be clearly marked as such
in the response. Failure to mark content as proprietary and/or
confidential may result in its disclosure in the event a response is
the subject of a Freedom of Information request under Public
Officers Law Section 87.
5 Please clarify your objectives around single-source data.
A comprehensive Child Care Assistance Program Information Management System
may require multiple software solutions, from one or more vendors. The response
a.From Att 1 P3, #16: Does your solution promote Single-Source to question 16 should provide an understanding of how the vendor’s solution
Data, eliminating duplication of efforts?
utilizes a shared data storage architecture where multiple applications contribute
to and retrieve operational data. If the vendor’s solution uses isolated data storage
that only allows information sharing via interfaces or batch file transfers, this
would not be considered single-source data and the vendor should indicate as
such.
6 RFI # 24: Please describe how your solution provides data source This is related to data migration, data warehousing, and analytics.
to target mapping. Can you please provide additional context for
this question? Is this related to data migration, analytics or
something else entirely.
7 There are 31 security links listed in this RFI, is there an
Yes. NYS security policies apply to all computers and networks that the vendor
expectation that Vendor will be subject to all 31 policies or just manages and maintains, including the computers and networks of the vendor that
those applicable to providing a SaaS level solution? If the latter, are accessing and managing a SaaS solution.
which policies would be applicable?
8 One of the bullets states "Access to the Time and Attendance
A Time and Attendance system is currently in place. Specific details pertaining to
System" - Is there a desire/expectation for the portal to interface the Time and Attendance system will be discussed as part of a future Request for
with an existing Time and Attendance system? (Section Desired Proposals (RFP), if one is issued.
Stakeholder Role Based Access Portal(s), 1. Parent/Family Portal
functions, page 5)
This Request for Information (RFI) is meant to gather information regarding
solutions that support Parent/Family Portal functions. A vendor should describe in
full their systems’ interface capabilities with respect to Time and Attendance
systems.
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9 Does NYS OCFS perform digital identity verification as part of the Specific details regarding digital identity verification process will be discussed as
application and eligibility determination process for CFAC? If so, part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
what process does the agency use and who is your vendor?
This RFI is meant to gather information about systems that support application and
eligibility functions. A vendor should describe, in full, their systems’ capabilities to
perform or integrate with a digital identity verification solution.
10 What risk assessment is undertaken as part of the eligibility
determination process?

Specific details regarding the risk assessment in the eligibility determination
process will be discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.

This RFI is meant to gather information about systems that support eligibility
functions. A vendor should describe, in full, their systems’ capabilities to address
risk assessment.
11 Does OCFS validate account ownership for the financial accounts Specific details regarding financial account verification will be discussed as part of a
provided by applicants that will receive disbursements from the future RFP, if one is issued.
State? If so, what tools or vendors does the State use?
This RFI is meant to gather information about systems that support application and
eligibility functions. A vendor should describe, in full, their systems’ capabilities to
perform or integrate with a digital identity verification solution.
12 What processes, if any, does the State use to validate changes in Specific details pertaining to the follow-up validation of applicant personal
applicant supplied information following initial application? If a information will be discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
user changes address, phone, email, or another piece of
identifying information, does the State validate that information? This RFI is meant to gather information about systems that support application
update functions. A vendor should describe in full their systems’ capabilities to
perform validation or integrate with external validation systems.
13 Is the State open to exploring new tools and techniques to
Yes, the State is open to exploring new tools and techniques. If desired, you may
validate applicant supplied information beyond what is currently include additional information in your response to this RFI.
used for Program Integrity and to detect and prevent fraud?
14 Is there any naming convention to be followed for the Proposal
response?
15 Is there any size limit (in MB) for proposal response?

16 Is there any page limit for various response sections in the
technical proposal?
17 Is there is a preference on the font style, font size, and spacing?

No. There is no specific naming convention required for your response to this RFI .
Respondents are encouraged to use good judgement in their naming convention
to ensure documents are easily identifiable.
Respondents to this Request for Information are encouraged to keep file sizes
reasonable. Respondents must keep the size of their email submissions to OCFS
within the limit of their email servers, otherwise OCFS might not receive your
submission. OCFS recommends 20MB in total size (or less) per each email.
Respondents are encouraged to use delivery receipt to confirm their email server
transmitted the files. If sending multiple emails, for example if you are submitting
two emails, please clearly identify "1 of 2" and "2 of 2" in the subject line along
with RFI # 1107.
No, there are no formal page limits. Respondents are encouraged to use good
judgement regarding what constitutes an appropriate length.
No, there are no specific requirements. Respondents are encouraged to use good
judgement when formatting and submitting their responses. OCFS recommends
standard 1-inch margins, size 11 or 12 text, and a font that is easily legible such as
Arial, Calibri, Times New Roman, or similar.
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18 When can we expect the RFP to be released ?

It is anticipated that one or more competitive RFPs may be issued based on the
results of this information-finding project, department priorities, and funding
availability. However, a timeline has not been established. Should OCFS decide to
issue an RFP, it will be posted on the NYS Contract Reporter https://nyscr.ny.gov/
and the OCFS website: https://www.ocfs.ny.gov/main/contracts/funding/.
Interested parties are encouraged to monitor these two websites for future
funding opportunities. Respondents to this RFI will also be added to an email
solicitation list to be used for future announcements.

19 Is there any possibility to extend the date of submission of RFI
response?

The RFI was amended on 11/7/2022, and an extension to the deadline for
submission of responses has been granted to all interested parties. The new
deadline for submission of responses to this RFI is 11/28/2022.
20 When can we expect the answers to our clarifications questions Answers to questions submitted to OCFS under this Request for Information will be
shared as soon as they become available.
to be posted?
21 Is it mandatory to have an NYS contract number to bid for
No, it is not necessary to have a NYS Contract Number to respond to this Request
opportunities coming from NYS?
for Information or to bid on OCFS competitive funding opportunities. If the
respondent to this RFI has a contract with NYS or any other applicable government
entity, they are encouraged to share this information in their response.
22 What would be the initial contract duration that NYS anticipates
once the project is awarded?

It is anticipated that one or more competitive RFPs may be issued based on the
results of this information-finding project, department priorities, and funding
availability. However, a timeline has not been established. Should OCFS decide to
issue an RFP, it will be posted on the NYS Contract Reporter https://nyscr.ny.gov/
and the OCFS website: https://www.ocfs.ny.gov/main/contracts/funding/.
Interested parties are encouraged to monitor these two websites for future
funding opportunities. Respondents to this RFI will also be added to an email
solicitation list to be used for future announcements.

23 What is the overall budget allocated for this project? Any high
OCFS anticipates funding availability for one or more potential competitive
level ball park / indicative numbers for DDI and then M&O phase procurements for the development of information systems discussed in the
would help.
content of this RFI. This RFI does not constitute a Request for Proposal (RFP) or an
Invitation for Bid (IFB) or a promise to issue an RFP or an IFB. As this project is in
the early planning and information gathering stages, there is currently no
estimated budget allocation available.
24 What is the IAM provider solution used by State? Please clarify if Specific details regarding user access information will be discussed as part of a
the State has a single sign-on (SSO) identity provider for the
future RFP, if one is issued.
internal users to log in. Please clarify if the State has active
directory like on-premise Microsoft AD or Azure AD which is also This RFI is meant to gather information about systems that utilize identity and
in synch with the State's on-premise Active Directory? Please
application access management. A vendor should describe in full their systems’
elaborate on what are the products being used are and where
capabilities to perform access management or integrate with other systems.
they are hosted for authentication?
25 What is integration platform (such as ESB - Mulesoft, Dell Boomi Specific details regarding API and system infrastructures will be discussed as part
etc.) used by the State in current environment or any API
of a future RFP, if one is issued.
management platforms are in place?
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations when integrating with other systems.
26 For service-based integrations, are there existing SOAP based
Specific details regarding SOAP, REST and API based services will be discussed as
web-services or mostly REST based services are in use integrating part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
with other legacy systems and applications? Where are the APIs /
services are hosted and what protocols do they support (e.g.
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
REST, SOAP, etc.)?
limitations when integrating with integrate with other systems.
27 Do you have any solution for Managed File Transfer (Secured
Specific details regarding Secured MFT and batch integrations will be discussed as
MFT) solution other than SFTP file server for file based batch
part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
integrations?
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations for integration with other systems.
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28 Do you have existing centralized Enterprise Data Warehouse
Specific details regarding required integration with an Enterprise Data Warehouse
(EDW) / BI solution platform, that will need all the Child Care
and/or BI solution will be discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
related data to be pushed into your enterprise data warehouse?
If so, what EDW solutions / technologies are in place?
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities to integrate
with other systems, including a data warehouse.
29 Does the State have any hosting preferences for the new
solution - cloud-based deployment for the new Child Care
Management System vs On-prem solution?
30 Does the State have any preference for specific Cloud Service
Provider (like AWS vs MS Azure) and/or any compliance
requirements that warrants for "Government Cloud"?

31 Does the State have any existing Cloud contracts / tenant that
they would wish to use as part of the hosting Strategy for new
CCMS solution? Please provide existing cloud tenants in use such
as within Azure Gov or Azure Commercial Cloud, in any of the US
regions.
32 Does the State has any applications / systems in cloud to be
integrated with new Child Care Management Solution? If so,
please provide details.

33 Are there any other legacy data sources other than current
CCMS that needs to be considered for data migration to new
solution?

No, the state does not have a preference. This RFI is meant to gather information
about the hosting options for vendor's solutions.
Specific details regarding requirements surrounding Cloud Service Providers will be
discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations for cloud service hosting. For further Information Security standard
information, please refer to the link in RFI 1107 question #13.
Specific details regarding requirements surrounding Cloud Service Providers will be
discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limita ons for cloud service hos ng.
Specific details regarding system integration will be discussed as part of a future
RFP, if one is issued.
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations for integrating with other systems.
Specific details regarding legacy data sources and system integration will be
discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.

This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations for integrating with other systems.
34 Can you please provide estimated data types and data volumes Specific details regarding data types and data volume will be discussed as part of a
for CCMS data in terms of No. of tables, No. of rows /records per future RFP, if one is issued.
table, and/or overall data in GB/TB) to be considered for data
conversion and migration to new solution?
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations for data storage.
35 What are expected number of internal and external users? Can Specific details regarding internal and external users will be discussed as part of a
you please provide the breakup on type of Users.
future RFP, if one is issued.

36 For face-to-face/Interactive training of state staff, can you
provide the expected number of staff, including their roles,
location etc.?

37 Can you clarify the need for having/including a NYS Contract
Number (PTXXXX)? Will this be a requirement when the RFP or
IFB is issued?

Please refer to the RFI for general information about the program's user
population. This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities
and limitations for user volume.
Specific details regarding expected training and state staff volumes and venues will
be discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
Please refer to the RFI for general information about the program's user
population. This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities
and limitations for training volume.
Per the Request for Information document, this information should be provided if
applicable. If you do not have a Contract Number for an existing award in New York
or other states, then please make that statement in your response. A contract
number is not required to respond to this Request for Information or to apply to
OCFS competitive funding opportunities. It is anticipated that any RFPs or IFBs
issued in the future will be open to all qualified bidders that are interested and
capable of performing this work.
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38 What is the anticipated project timeline following the RFI?

It is anticipated that one or more competitive RFPs may be issued based on the
results of this information-finding project, department priorities, and funding
availability. However, a timeline has not been established. Should OCFS decide to
issue an RFP, it will be posted on the NYS Contract Reporter https://nyscr.ny.gov/
and the OCFS website: https://www.ocfs.ny.gov/main/contracts/funding/.
Interested parties are encouraged to monitor these two websites for future
funding opportunities. Respondents to this RFI will also be added to an email
solicitation list to be used for future announcements.

39 FUNDING STREAM ASSIGNMENT
1. Are the funding streams mentioned from within CCAP?
2. Are SNAP or EBT considered funding streams?
3. Can you provide examples of the different funding streams for
a single case?
4. Will providers be using this system to apply eligibility for the
program/funding sources (if needed)?

Specific details regarding funding stream allocation will be discussed as part of a
future RFP, if one is issued.
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations for funding stream management.

40 BENEFIT TRACKING
Specific details regarding benefit management and tracking of funding streams will
1. Is this asking about balance of awarded amounts?
be discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
2. Will benefits be consolidated into a single award or will we be
tracking across several funding streams?
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations for benefit management and funding stream management.
41 ESTABLISH PARENT/CHILD PLACEMENT WITH PROVIDER
Answer to 1: Yes, that is correct.
1. We are interpreting this as linking parent, child, and provider
information within the system. Can you confirm?
Answer to 2-3: Specific details regarding provider management will be discussed as
2. How will parent/child information in the system be shared
part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
with providers? Does CCAP have a separate data-sharing
agreement with providers?
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
3. Does CCAP currently maintain a list of providers? If so, how
limitations for addressing provider management or integrating with a provider
many providers are on this list?
management system.
42 RECORD DAILY TIME-IN, TIME-OUT, AND ABSENCES
Answer to 1: Yes
1. Can you confirm that the time-tracking is for child
attendance/absence at the provider’s facility?
Answer to 2: Details pertaining to time tracking management will be discussed as
2. Would the time-tracking be done within the system? Is there a part of any future RFPs.
need to set up data integration with a provider’s/facility’s timetracking software?
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations for time and attendance tracking or integration with external time and
attendance systems.
43 PAYMENT AND RECOUPMENT MANAGEMENT AND
Specific details regarding payment management and recoupment will be discussed
DISBURSEMENT
as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
Can you provide expectations and examples around recoupment
management?
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations surrounding payment management and recoupment.
44 PROGRAM INTEGRITY: ANALYTICS
Specific details regarding expectations surrounding analytics for program integrity
Can you provide expectations and examples around analytics for will be discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
program integrity?
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations surrounding analytics for program integrity.
45 COMMUNICATION WITH LOCAL AND STATE CASE WORKERS
Specific details regarding communications and security access specifications will be
AND CHILD CARE PROVIDERS
discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
1. Can you provide examples of communications?
2. Do communications need to happen within the portal? Or are This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
you looking for set up a directory (e.g., list of names and contact limitations surrounding communications management.
information)?
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46 OTHER ASPECTS OF OPEN AND ARCHIVED CASES
Can you provide clarification around this requirement?

Specific details regarding case management will be discussed as part of a future
RFP, if one is issued.
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations surrounding case management.
Specific details regarding communications and security access specifications will be
discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.

47 COMMUNICATE WITH LOCAL AND STATE REPRESENTATIVES
ABOUT CCAP PROGRAM
1. Can you provide examples of communications?
2. Do communications need to happen within the portal? Or are This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
you looking for set up a directory (e.g., list of names and contact limitations surrounding communications management.
information)?
48 GENERAL
1. Who are the case workers (e.g., are they providers or State
employees)?
2. Will the vendor be expected to provide case workers?

Answer to 1: Case workers are state and local district employees.

49 COMMUNICATE WITH PARENTS AND PROVIDERS ABOUT CCAP
PROGRAM
1. Can you provide examples of communications?
2. Do communications need to happen within the portal? Or are
you looking for set up a directory (e.g., list of names and contact
information)?

Specific details regarding communications and security access specifications will be
discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.

50 We understand that NYS OCFS is centrally supervised by the
state program office but is administered by fifty-eight local
services districts; that OCFS personnel, local district staff, childcare providers, and parents will rely on this system. Can you give
us approximate counts for each category of users and describe
which are internal (core), and external users?

Specific details regarding internal and external users will be discussed as part of a
future RFP, if one is issued.

51 When the RFI refers to administrative users/administrative
portal functions, which of the above user groups will have
administrative users who have access to administrative portal
functions, and the number of users per group will have this
access?

Specific details regarding internal and external users will be discussed as part of a
future RFP, if one is issued.

52 We understand the OCFS CCAP program currently assists over
60,000 working families per year with paying for childcare and
anticipate an increase to over 150,000 families per year as the
program expands. On average, please indicate the number of
family members per family expected to use the system.

Answer to 2: No, the vendor will not provide case workers.

This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations surrounding communications management.

Please refer to the RFI for general information about the program's user
population. This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities
and limitations for user volume.

Please refer to the RFI for general information about the program's user
population. This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities
and limitations for user volume.
Specific details regarding family access will be discussed as part of a future RFP, if
one is issued.
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations surrounding access volumes.
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53 With respect to the migration of 7 years of data, please help us
to understand additional detail to properly advise:
1. For legacy data, does OCFS desire all this data to be migrated
into the new data structures, to be available for reporting
purposes, or a combination/hybrid of the two? Is there any data
that OCFS prefers to not be migrated?
2. Do the siloed systems containing the data for conversion
share common keys that can be relied upon or is there a data
mastering problem that should also be anticipated?
3. If data mastering is required, can the vendor rely on
participation of OCFS data experts to assist in resolving data
mastering discrepancies?

Answer to 1: Specific details regarding legacy data migration will be discussed as
part of a future RFP, if one is issued. This RFI is meant to explore all options for the
migration of historical and current data into new data structures for the purpose of
data mining and reporting.

54 How many separate systems are currently holding data OCFS
would like to see migrated?

Specific details regarding current systems, data storage architecture, data quality
and completeness, programming languages and existing integrations will be
discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.

For each system, can you provide details on the legacy
technology platform?
1. List Data Stores, keys, record length and record volumes
2. Describe level data quality and completeness/know issues
with data consistency due to workarounds over time
3. DBMS and overall database size
4. OS
5. Programming language(s)
6. Are documents involved, and if so, how many?
7. Which will be sun-set by the new system
Integrations
8. What are your current integrations with internal and external
systems?
9. How many of these integrations need to be migrated?
55 What is the type of deployment you may prefer e.g., on-premise,
cloud, hybrid?

56 Support
1. Do you anticipate a need for 24-hour tech support coverage
or only during business hours?
2. Do you have an IT staff to support system postimplementation or are you anticipating using a vendor?

Answer to 2-3: Specific details regarding data common keys, data mastering and
availability of data experts will be discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
This RFI is intended to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations for data migration and data mastering.

This RFI is intended to solicit information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations in providing data migration and integration.

Specific details regarding requirements surrounding Cloud Service Providers will be
discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations for cloud service hosting.
Specific details regarding technology support requirements will be discussed as
part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
This RFI is intended to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations for technology support coverage.

57 On page 4, the RFI lists “Assistance oversight.” Is this a reference Yes, that is correct.
to the solution providing tools e.g., reports, dashboards for
managerial oversight of the CCAP program itself?
58 Are you anticipating the solution will need multi-language
support? And if yes, which languages?

Specific details regarding multi-language support will be discussed as part of a
future RFP, if one is issued.
This RFI is intended to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations for multi-language support.
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59 What are the technology components of the application? Can
you share any architecture diagram(s)?

Specific details regarding the technology architecture will be discussed as part of a
future RFP, if one is issued.

60 Do you have a preferred cloud vendor and if so, can you share
who it is?

This RFI is intended to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations to work with varying legacy systems.
Specific details regarding requirements surrounding Cloud Service Providers will be
discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.

This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations for cloud service hosting.
61 Please specify your low-code and/or no-code platform providers. Specific details regarding current platforms will be discussed as part of a future
RFP, if one is issued.

62 What integration platform does NYS currently use?

63 Do you have preferred programming languages?

This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations for low code and/or no-code providers.
Specific details regarding current platforms will be discussed as part of a future
RFP, if one is issued.
This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limita ons for integra on.
Specific details regarding preferred programming languages will be discussed as
part of a future RFP, if one is issued.

This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations for programming.
64 Does your organization have a devops strategy, and if so, can you Specific details regarding requirements for develops strategy will be discussed as
provide a high level overview?
part of a future RFP, if one is issued.

65
66

67
68

69

This RFI is meant to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations for develops.
Would NYS be open to other technology solutions outside of
Yes, NYS is open to other technology solutions. Please provide relevant
what is currently in use?
information in your response to this RFI.
Does the state have identified budget or financial constraints for OCFS anticipates funding availability for one or more potential competitive
this solution?
procurements for the development of information systems discussed in the
content of this RFI. This RFI does not constitute a Request for Proposal (RFP) or an
Invitation for Bid (IFB) or a promise to issue an RFP or an IFB. As this project is in
the early planning and information gathering stages, there is currently no
estimated budget allocation available.
Would the state consider managed services solutions?
Yes, NYS is willing to consider managed services solutions. Please provide relevant
information in your response to this RFI.
Under provider payment, what party is expected to hold the
Specific details regarding the payment funding model(s) will be discussed as part of
funds – the state, local social service districts, the prospective
a future RFP, if one is issued.
solution vendor, or a third party?
This RFI is intended to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations to work with varying payment funding models.
Please confirm issuance will be performed in another state
Specific details regarding payment issuance/disbursement methodology will be
system (BICS, the IES Financial Management Module, SFS, etc)
discussed as part of a future RFP, if one is issued.
This RFI is intended to gather information about a vendor's capabilities and
limitations to perform payment disbursement.
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